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Monitise plc
Strategic Report
for the year ended 30 June 2017

The Directors present their strategic report on the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Strategy and future developments

Monitise focuses on accelerating the digital transformation of banks and financial institutions through its mobile banking and payments
focused product offering. The Group is long established as a trusted supplier of world-class innovation in financial services and
continues to drive innovation in the global FinTech market via its latest proposition, FINKit.

On 1 September 2017 the Group was acquired by Fiserv UK Limited, an indirect and wholly owned subsidiary of Fiserv, Inc.

Combining the FINkit technology with leading digital solutions from Fiserv is expected to accelerate the integration of existing online and
mobile banking capabilities and user experiences into a newly enhanced digital platform resulting in improved speed to market of new
features, while targeting a lower total cost of ownership.

Review of the business and position of the Group at the financial year end
The Group's results are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 9.

Review of the Group’s business
After the significant restructuring undertaken in the prior year, the Group focused on transitioning from its legacy MEP business to its
new FINKit proposition, and on improving the profitability of each of its five business units.

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2017 was £50,805,000 (2016: £67,565,000). The reduction in revenue primarily reflected the
managed decline in the Group's legacy MEP business and the full year impact of lost customer contracts taken in-house in the Americas
business in the prior year.

The declines in certain areas were offset by growth elsewhere, not least in the Content business, which continued to see progress and
increased revenues from £9,942,000 to £12,693,000, with a major contributing factor being the continued growth in visits to its UK
voucher business - myvouchercodes.co.uk.

The EBITDA loss in the year ended 30 June 2017 was £714,000 (2016: £19,623,000). The reduction in EBITDA loss reflected the full
year effect of the prior year restructuring. :

The loss after tax for the financial year was £21,694,000 (2016: loss £233,371,000) after an exceptional credit reflecting the settlement of
onerous contracts at amounts less than previously provided of £6,607,000 (2016: exceptional charge of £3,492,000), and impairments of
tangible and intangible fixed assets of £4,000,000 (2016: £175,896,000).

At 30 June 2017 the Group had a cash balance of £22,235,000 (2016: £42,089,000).

The Statement of Financial Position of the Group at 30 June 2017 is set out on page 10.



Monitise plc
Strategic Report (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Principal risks and uncertainties
The management of the Group and the implementation of strategy are subject to a number of risks.

The key business risks affecting the Group are below.

Risks are formally reviewed by the board and appropriate processes put in place to monitor and mitigate them. If more than one event
occurs, it is possible that the overall effect of such events would compound the possible adverse effects on the Group.

(a) Strategic risks
The risk that FINkit does not generate sufficient revenue
The Group's focus remains on delivering sales following successful trials and through live opportunities that are being actively
pursued directly. The new ownership by Fiserv, announced subsequent to the year-end on 1 September 2017, will support the
speed to market and user take-up of new features, while targeting a lower total cost of ownership.

The risk that other business units fail to meet their business plans

Business units are closely monitored by the Directors based upon monthly monitoring against budgets, reforecasts on a frequent
basis and a delegation of authority that requires new hires, significant expenditure, capital expenditure and non-standard
contracts to be approved by the Directors. Restructuring required to improve performance or bring businesses to profitability is
implemented by local management and closely monitored by the Directors.

The risk of increased competition from third party products and customers developing solutions in house.

Regular reviews of competitor activity are undertaken to ensure that the Group is aware of, and reacts to, competitive threats.
Market proposition communication plans are in place with sales efforts focused upon clients with known need for product
enhancements. In addition, there is continued development and communication of partner programmes to highlight the tangibility
of solutions.

(b) Operational and financial risk
The risk that costs of key supply contracts and internal costs are too high or not flexible with activity
During the last financial year the Group successfully exited all of its onerous trading contracts, materially reduced group
headcount, and merged its London operations into one site, thereby significantly reducing the fixed cost of the business. Certain
costs relating to supporting the core MEP and Americas contracts have been outsourced to provide a more flexible cost base as
contract activity and revenues with these products decrease.

The risk of losing key individuals

The Group offers competitive packages, incentivises existing key talent through long term incentives and continues to recruit new
talent when required. The Group partners with external service providers who bring additional expertise and provide support in
both existing and target markets. It is expected that the new ownership structure will provide a deeper resource pool for the
Group.

The risk that security controls do not prevent loss of customer data or company information

Security assurance is an integral part of FINkit development as new functionalities and proeducts are introduced into the platform.
For existing capabilities, a detailed assurance programme has reviewed and tested a large number of security controls. A clear
security strategy has been developed alongside the decentralisation of the business.

The risk that market changes adversely impact the volume of transactions delivered across Monitise platforms
Internal expertise and external consultancy is utilised to monitor relevant changes in the market environment. Transaction
volumes are monitored.

On behalf of the Board

12 September 2017



Monitise plc
Directors' Report
for the year ended 30 June 2017

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Monitise plc (the "Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017,
which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union.

Principal Activities
Monitise plc ("the Company") and it subsidiaries (together, "the Group") is a specialist in financial services technology primarily
focused on accelerating the digital transformation of banks and financial institutions.

Results, dividends and future developments
Details of the results are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 9 and are discussed in the Strategic Report.

The loss after tax for the financial year ended was £21,694,000 (2016: loss £233,371,000). The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2016: £nil). Details of the future developments of the Group are included in the Strategic Report.

Post balance sheet events
On 1 September 2017 Monitise plc was acquired by Fiserv UK Limited, an indirect and wholly owned subsidiary of Fiserv, Inc.

Going concern

At 30 June 2017, the Group had cash of £22,235,000. The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast, including reasonable
sensitivities, which shows sufficient funding to see the Group through the forecast period. The forecast includes the benefits from the
cost savings which are being made from the business optimisation programme, headcount rationalisation, exiting from non-core
geographies and property rationalisation. Furthermore, capital expenditure is expected to continue at the substantially reduced leve!
experienced during the year ending 30 June 2017 following the development and launch of the new platform "FINkit". This new
platform is expected to drive a new, higher margin revenue stream. The Directors therefore confirm that they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
accordingly these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Directors
The Directors who served during the year and up to date of signing the financial statements were as foliows:

L Cameron Chief Executive Officer

G James Chief Operating Officer Appointed 01 July 2016

P Ayliffe Chairman Resigned 01 September 2017
A Burton Non-Executive Director Resigned 01 September 2017
T Wade Non-Executive Director - Resigned 01 September 2017

During the year, as part of its obligations as a listed entity the Board operated an Audit & Risk Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and a Nominations & Governance Committee. All three committees were disbanded post year-end on 1 September 2017
following the delisting of the Company from AIM.

Research and development

The Group undertakes research and development activities relating to the products and services it provides. Disclosures regarding
the expenditure and capitalisation of development costs in the year have been made in notes 6 and 11 to the financial statements
respectively.

Disabled persons

The Group is committed to providing equality of opportunity to employees and potential employees. This applies to appropriate
training, career development and promotion for all employees, regardless of physical ability, gender, sexual orientation, religion, age
or ethnic origin.

The Group is committed to equality of opportunity and full and fair consideration is given to applications for employment received from
disabled persons. Should an employee become disabled during their employment with the Group, whenever possible their services
will be retained.



Monitise plc
Directors' Report (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments primarily comprise cash balances, loans, trade receivables and payables arising from its
operations. The Group's policy and year-end position regarding financial instruments has been fully disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.

Political and charitable donations
The Company made no political or charitable donations during the year (2016: £nil).

Directors and their interests
The Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had the following interests in the £0.01 Ordinary shares of the Company
at the balance sheet date:

30 June 30 June

2017 2016

Number Number

of shares of shares
L Cameron 1,588,880 1,588,880
G James : 863,292 -
P Ayliffe 520,270 520,270
A Burton 261,884 261,884
T Wade ) 350,000 350,000

Directors had the following interests in options over ordinary shares of the Company at the balance sheet date:

Number L Cameron Total
At 01 July 2016 10,750,000 10,750,000
Granted . - -
Lapsed - -
At 30 June 2017 10,750,000 10,750,000

Directors' indemnity and liability insurance

The Company has purchased and maintained throughout the year liability insurance in respect of its Directors. The Directors also
have the benefit of the indemnity provision contained in the company's Articles of Association which represents a qualifying third-
party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Environment and Slavery Act

The direct environmental impacy of Group operations is relatively low, with the main impacts arising from business-related travel and
power consumption in our various locations around the world. Nonetheless, Monitise is committed to reducing carbon emissions
wherever possible.

The Group does not tolerate any slavery or human trafficking within its business operations. All of our business units operate under
the Group's values and adhere to the laws of the countries in which we operate. All of the Group's employees based in the UK and
abroad are required to have the necessary documentation to work legally in their designated country and meet the legal minimum age
for employment. The Group's suppliers are obliged by Monitise's contractual arrangements to comply with all applicable laws, which
includes the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

Employees

Sourcing and retaining the highest calibre employees from a wide range of backgrounds is key to the Group's strategy. The service
the Group provides to all its customers is only as good as the people who represent the business and brand. The Group provides
competitive reward and benefit packages, supported by appropriate training and personal development packages, and ways to
encourage and reward outstanding performance.

Senior management regularly hold interactive sessions with staff to discuss relevant developments in different parts of the business
and future activity. The Group also has programmes in place to help staff stay fit and well. Those initiatives, including gym discounts,
childcare vouchers and Ride2work schemes, help to improve health, boost morale and lower staff absence, making them good for
business as well as for the Group's teams.



Monitise plc
Directors’ Report (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group and company
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

«» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group financial statements and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the company financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and parent
company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

In the case of each director in office at the date the Directors' Report is approved:
« so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s auditors are unaware;
» they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Group and Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

On behalf of the Board

] //
T Spurgeon
Company Secretary

12 September 2017



Monltrse plc

- Independent auditors' report to the members of Monrtrse plc

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our oplnron Monitise plc's Group flnancral statements and company frnancral statements (the "flnancra| statements")

 _give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s and of the company’s attarrs as at 30 June 2017 and of the Group's loss and
. ,the Group's and the company's cash flows for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applred in accordance with the
provisions of the Companles Act 2006; and

A ~* have been prepared in accordance with the requrrements of the Compantes Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30.June 2017; the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and
.company statements of cash flows, and the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

. Basis for opinion :

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applrcable Iaw Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities-for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtamed is sufficient and approprlate to provrde a basis for our opinion.

A

Independence :
We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
wrth these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to.report in respect of the following matters in relation to whrch 1SAs (UK) requrre us to report to you when:

+ the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropnate or

* the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any rdentmed material uncertainties that may cast srgnlfrcant doubt
about the Group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at Ieast twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. ¢

However, because. not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and
company s ability to continue as a gorng concern.

Reporting on other information -
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
‘report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
‘other information ard, accordingly, we do not.express an audit opinion-or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in-this
report, any form of assurance thereon. : ) . . R

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other.information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledgeé obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportbased on these responsibilities.

Wrth respect to the. Strategic Report and Drrectors Report we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act.2006 have been included. :

Based on the responsibilities descrrbed above and our work undertaken in the course, of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to report
certain opinions and matters as described below.



Monitise plc.
Independent auditors' report to the members of Monitise plc (contmued)
Report on the financial statements .

Reporting on other information (continued)

Strategic Report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
- Report for the year ended 30 June 2017 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with

applicable legal requurements ‘ :

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. :

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities for the directors of the financial statements

As explairied more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page ], the dlrectors are responsible for the,
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they-give a true and
fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal.control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to.fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless.
. the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements N
Our-objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material -
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to.issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantée that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material |
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic deC|S|ons of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements. :

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report. -

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body in accordance with’ Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to-any other person to whom this report is shown or |nto whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by-our prior consent in wrmng : .

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
" Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to.report to you if, in our opinion:
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
" branches not visited by us; or . :

.

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or . N .
* _the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ansmg from this responsibility.

Simon O'Brien_(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

12 Septemt)er 2017 .



Monitise plc 9
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2017
2017 2016

Note £°000 £000
Revenue 5 50,905 67,565
Cost of sales (19,628) (28,706)
Gross profit 31,2717 38,859
Operating costs before depreciation, amortisation, impairments and share-based payments’ (31,991) (58,482)
EBITDA’ ' (714)  (19,623)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments’ 6 (24,518) (205,216)
Operating loss before share-based payments and exceptional items (25,232) (224,839)
Share-based payments’ 24 (4,107)  (16,468)
Other exceptional items’ 6 6,607 (3,492)
Operating loss 6 (22,732) (244,799)
Finance income 8 196 1,975
Finance costs 8 (99) (200)
Share of post-tax loss of joint ventures 13 (28) (58)
Loss before income tax (22,663) (243,082)
Income tax 9 969 9,711
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (21,684) (233,371)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences on consolidation ) (1,926) 8,889
Total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (23,620) (224,482)

1 Total operating costs after depreciation, amortisation, impairments, share-based payments and exceptional expenses are £54,009,000 (2016:

£283,658,000).

2 EBITDA is defined as operating loss before exceptional items, depreciation, amortisation, impairments and share-based payments charge.

The Company has elected to take the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company Statement of

Comprehensive income (see note 28).

The notes on pages 15 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Monitise plc
Consolidated statement of financial position

10

as at 30 June 2017
2017 2016
Note £000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,569 3,338
Intangible assets 1 17,418 36,155
Other receivables 14 649 370
19,636 39,863
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 11,083 15,970
Current tax assets - 12
Cash and cash equivalents 15 22,235 42,089
33,318 58,071
Total assets 52,954 97,934
LIABILITIES
Current liabllities
Trade and other payables 18 (14,181) (21,627)
Current tax liabilities (10) -
Provisions 19 (930) (10,864)
Financial liabilities 20 (596) (1,002)
(15,717) (33,493)
Non-current liablilities
Other payables 18 (1,088) (950)
Provisions 19 (1,812) (8,016)
Financial liabilities 20 (184) (807)
Deferred tax liabilities 21 - (1,021)
Total liabilities (18,801) (44,287)
Net assets 34,153 53,647
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Ordinary shares 23 23,179 22,519
Ordinary shares to be issued 23 - 2,511
Share premium 23 383,727 383,721
Foreign exchange translation reserve 23 4,451 6,377
Other reserves 23 275,137 269,449
Accumulated losses (652,341) (630,930)
Total equity 34,153 53,647

These financial statements on pages 9 to 41 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 September 2017 and were signed on

its behalf by:

Chief"Executive Officer / Chief Operating Officer

Company number: 06011822
The notes on pages 15 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Monitise plc 1
Company statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2017
2017 2016
Note £'000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries . 12 34,812 33,459
' 34,812 33,459
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 275 283
Cash and cash equivalents ) ) 15 5175 15,832
5,450 16,115
Total assets 40,262 49,574
LIABILUTIES
Current llablilities
Trade and other payables 18 (4,644) (5,209)
Provisions 19 (682) (565)
(5,326) (5,774)
Non-current liabllitles
Provisions 19 - (153)
Total liabllities ' (5,326) (5.927)
Net assets 34,936 43,647
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Ordinary shares 23 23,179 22,519
Ordinary shares to be issued 23 - 2,511
Share premium 23 383,727 383,721
Other reserves 23 290,339 285,922
Accumulated losses (662,309) (651,026)
Total equity 34,936 43,647

The loss for the financial year of the Company was £12,919,000 (2016: £201,627,000).

These financial statements on pages 9 to 41 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 September 2017 and were signed on
its behalf by:

Company number: 06011822

The notes on pages 15 to 41 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Monitise plc 12
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Ordinary . Reverse Share-based Foreign
Ordinary shares to be Share Merger acquisition payment A hang Total
shares issued premium reserve reserve reserve losses reserve equity
) Note _£'000 £000 £000 i £'000 £000 — £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 July 2015 21,682 2,51 383,721 228,672 (25,321) 40,863 (397,833) (2,512) 251,783
Loss for the year - - - - - - (233,371) - (283,371)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - 8,889 8,889
Total comprehensive (expense)/income - - - - - - (233,371) 18,889  (224,482)
Issue of Ordinary shares }
relating to prior year business 23 791 - - 9,511 - (470) - - 9,832
combinations
Share-based payments 24 - - - - - 16,468 - - 16,468
Exercise of share options 23 46 - - - - (274) . 274 - 46
Balance at 30 June 2016 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 ~ (25321) 56,587 (630,930) 6,377 . 53,647
Batance at 1 July 2016 N 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 (25,321) 56,587  (630,930) 6,377 53,647
Loss for the year - - - - - - (21,604) - (21,694)
Other comprehensive expense - - - - - - - (1,926) (1,926)
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - - (21,694) (1,926)  (23,620)
Issue of Ordinary shares
relating to prior year business 23 647 (2,511) - 2,466 - (602) - - -
combinations
Share-based payments 24 - - - - - 4,107 - - 4,107
Exercise of share options 23 13 - 6 - - (283) 283 - 19
Balance at 30 June 2017 23,179 - 383,727 240,649 4,451 34,153

(25,321) 59,809 (652,341)

The notes on pages 15 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Monitise plc 13
Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Reverse Ordinary Share-based . Foreign
acquisition Ordinary shares to be Share Merger payment Accumulated  exchange Total
reserve shares issued premium reserve reserve losses reserve equity
— — i Notg : _£'900 — 2"000 - £'000 . £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000 £000
Balance at 1 July 2015 - - 21,682 2511 383721 228,672 30,779  (449,549) Tl 217,816
Loss for the year and total ' :
comprehensive expensé 28 ) ) ; ) ) - (201.627) - (e01.627)
Issue of Ordinary shares .
relating to prior year business 23 . - 791 - - 9,511 (470) - - 9,832 .
combinations )
Share-based payments 24 - - - - - 17,704 (124) - 17,580
Exercise of share options 23 - 46 - - - (274) 274 - 46
Balance at 30 June 2016 . . . .. - 22519 .2511 383,721 . 238,183 - 47,739 _ (651,026) - 43,647
Balance at 1 July 2016 - 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 47,739  (651,026) - 43,647
Loss for the year and total ) A
comprehensive 28 - - - - (12,919) 82 (12,837)
Issue of Ordinary shares ]
relating to prior year business 23 - 647 (2,511) - 2,466 (602) - - -
combinations ] )
Share-based payments 24 - - - - - 2,754 1,353 - 4,107
Exercise of share options 23 - 13 - 6 - (283) 283 - 19
383,727 - 240,649 - 49,608 (662,309) 82 134,936

Balance at 30 June 2017 - S . 23,179 - -

The notes on pages 15 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



Monitise plc 14
Cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Group _Company
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £000 £'000 £000

Cash flows used in operating activities
Cash used by operations, before exceptional expenses 26 (5,731)  (21,869) (10,443) (26,262)
Exceptional expenses (8,716) (15,959) (277) {597)
Net income tax paid (24) (80) - -
Net cash used In operating actlvities (14,471)  (37,908)  (10,720)  (26,859)
investing activities
Investments in joint ventures 13 - (500) - -
Interest received 126 338 44 286
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 35 - -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (442) (894) - -
Purchase and capitalisation of intangible assets (4,135) (8,238) - -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (4,444) (9,259) 44 286
Financing activities )
Share options and warrants exercised 19 85 19 85
Interest paid (52) (122) - .
Repayments of finance lease liabilities (982) (1,155) - -
Net cash (used In)from financing activities (1,015) (1,192) 19 85
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (19,930)  (48,359) (10,657) (26,488)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 42,089 88,801 15,832 42,320
Effect of exchange rate changes 76 1,647 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 22,235 42,089 5,175 15,832

The notes on pages 15 to 41 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

1. General information

Monitise plc (the Company’), and its subsidiaries (together ‘the Group'), is a specialist in financial services technology primarily focused on accelerating the
digital transformation of banks and financial institutions. The Group is headquartered in the UK and, during the year ended 30 June 2017, operated trading
ventures in the UK, US and Turkey.

During the year the Company was a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales whose shares were publicly traded on the
Alternative Investment Market (AIM’} of the London Stock Exchange. Subsequent to the year-end, on 1 September 2017 the entire issued and to be issued
share capital of the company was acquired by Fiserv UK Limited, an indirect and wholly owned subsidiary of Fiserv, Inc. As a resutt of the acquisition the
Company delisted from AIM on 4 September 2017 and will be re-registered as a private company.

2. Summary of significant accounting policles
The principa! accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. The policies are the same as those
used in preparing the consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2016, unless otherwise stated.

2.1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Monitise plc have been prepared on a going concem basis in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union ('IFRS as adopted by the EU'), IFRS Interpretations Committee and the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

2.1.1. Going concem

At 30 June 2017, the Group had cash of £22,235,000. The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast, including reasonable sensitivities, which shows
sufficient funding to see the Group through the forecast period. The forecast includes the benefits from the cost savings which are being made from the
business optimisation programme, headcount rationalisation, exiting from non-core gecgraphies and property rationalisation. Furthermore, capital
expenditure is expected to continue at the substantially reduced level experienced during the year ended 30 June 2017 following the development and
launch of the new platform ("FINKkit"). This new platform is expected to drive a new, higher margin revenue stream. The Directors therefore confirm that they
have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and accordingly
these financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies (see note 4).

2.1.2. New standards and Interpretations

a) New, revised and amended standards adopted

There were no new or amended accounting standards relevant to the Group that were effective for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 July 2016
that have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

b) New, revised and amended standards issued but not yet adopted

A number of new, revised and amended accounting standards and interpretations are currently endorsed but are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 July 2017, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these are expected to have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, except the following:

Accounting standard Requirement

IFRS 16 Leases Under the previous guidance in IAS 17, a lessee had to make a distinction between a
finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). The new

(effective for the first time for the year beginning 1 standard requires lessees to recognise almost all lease contracts on the balance sheet;

July 2019, subject to EU endorsement) the only optional exemptions are for certain short term leases and leases of low-value

assets. An interest expense on the lease liability and depreciation on the ‘right-of-use’
asset will also have to be recognised. The Group is in the process of assessing IFRS

16's full impact.
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers IFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
(effective for the first time for the year beginning 1 uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers.
July 2018) Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus

has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The
standard replaces IAS 18 Revenuse and IAS 11 Construction contracts and related
interpretations. The Group is in the process of assessing IFRS 15's full impact.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. it replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the

(effective for the first time for the year beginning 1 classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 establishes three

July 2018) primary measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of
classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to
be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to
present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income not recycling. The Group
is in the process of assessing IFRS 9's full impact.

The Group continues to monitor the potential impact of other new standards and interpretations which may be endorsed by the European Union and require
adoption by the Group in future accounting periods.
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2. Summary of significant
2.2. Consolidation

The financial information consolidates the results of Monitise plc and the entities controlled by the Company and includes the Group's share of the results
and net assets of its joint ventures for the periods covered by the financial information.

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over whose financial and operating policies the Group has the power to govern, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of the potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that contro! ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. The for the ofa
subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities _:oc:mn and =._m equity interests issued .u< the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability i ion arrangement. Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and lial s and contingent liabilities mmwcioa in a business combination are measured y at their fair values at
the isition date. On an acquisition-by ion basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate m:mqw of the acquiree's net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the i i net assets acquired is ded as goodwill. If this is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income. Gains on acquisitions may arise iﬁs the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree exceeds the

book value of that interest.

Inter-company transactions, balances and i gains on i Group are
have been where y to ensure istency with the policies adopted by the Group.

ies

b) Joint venture arrangements

Joint ventures are all entities over which the Group exercises _o int control. Investments in joi 5 <e=25m are accounted for using the equity method

of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group's ir in joint i goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss. The Group’s share of its joint ventures’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. Any net joint venture liability is recognised in non-current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

Sales from the Group to joint ventures are recognised in full as revenue. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are
o_ minated to the extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
i t of the asset

Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

2.3. Revenue
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services provided within the Group's ordinary
activities, net of discounts and sales taxes. It comprises platform supply and transactions, product licences and development and integration services.

Platform supply and transactional relates to revenue generated from all types of end-user activity and may take various forms including per-user fees, click
fees, commissions and revenue share, and includes associated managed services. This revenue is recognised as the services are performed.

Preduct licences are sales where the customer has the ability to exploit the licensed functionality upon delivery and include both certain term-based and
umam:.m_ licences. These licence revenues are recognised as a sale of a good once all of the below recognition criteria have been met:
the Group has transferred to the uEQ the m_o:_mnma risks and rewards of ownership of the licence;

« the Group retains neither i I to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
 the amount of revenue can be :.mnmen reliably;
« itis probable that the ic benefits i with the ion will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
_for the year ended 30 June 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3. Revenue (continued)

Revenue relating to development and integration services contracted on a time and materials basis is recognised as the services are performed. Revenue
relating to development and integration services identified as a service contract, provided over a specified time period, is recognised on a straight-line basis.
Development and integration service revenue delivered under a fixed-price contract is recognised on a percentage-of-completion basis, based on the extent
of work completed as a percentage of overall estimated project cost, when the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably. Determining whether a
contract’s outcome can be estimated reliably requires management to exercise judgement and estimates are continually reviewed as determined by events
or circumstances. Provision is made as soon as a loss is foreseen.

Typically, a number of the above elements may be sold together as a bundled contract. Revenue is recognised separately for each component if it is
considered to represent a separable good or service and a fair value can be reliably established. The Group may derive fair value for its services based on
a reliable cost estimate plus an appropriate market-based margin. Where a product licence is included within a bundled arrangement, the residual value of
the contract is ascribed to the product licence after a fair value has been allocated to all other components.

Amounts which meet the Group's revenue recognition policy which have not yet been invoiced are accounted for as accrued income whereas amounts
invoiced which have not met the Group's revenue recognition criteria are deferred and are accounted for as deferred income until such time as the revenue
can be recognised. Management makes an assessment of the certainty of any accrued revenue amounts in determining how much revenue to recognise.

2.4. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historicat cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition or creation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probabfe that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
item is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the financial year in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs, over the lower of their estimated useful lives or term of lease, as
follows:
Estimated useful lives

"Office equipment 3 -5years
Computer equipment 3 -5 years
Leasehold improvements Lower of 10 — 15 years or the term of the lease to the first break

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each year end reporting date. An asset's carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. -

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

2.5. Goodwlll
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially recognised as an assst at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. It is held in the currency
of the acquired entity and revalued at the closing rate at the reporting date. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
on acquisition of joint ventures is included in the carrying amount of those investments.

Goodhwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested at least annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment (see note 2.7). On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on disposal.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6. Other imangible assets

Expenditure incurred in the development of software products, and their related intellectual property rights, is capitalised as an intangible asset only when
technical feasibility has been demonstrated; adequate technical, financial and other resources exist to complete the development, which the Group intends
to complete and use; future economic benefits expected to arise are deemed probable; and the costs can be reliably measured. Research costs and
development costs not meeting these criteria are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred. Capitalised development costs are
amortised as a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income within amortisation on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives. Capitalised
development costs for assets which are not yet in use are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changss in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. Separately acquired licences have a finite usefu! life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Contractual customer relationships, technology-related intangible assets and software licences purchased or acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. These assets have finite useful lives and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Amortisation on the assets is calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Customer contracts ’ 3 -4 years
Intellectual property rights 3 -4 years
Acquired technology 3-4years
Purchased software licences 3 -4 years
Acquired software licences 3 -4 years
Capitalised development costs 3—4years

2.7. Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash generating units for the purpose of impairment reviews (see note 11).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.8. Financlal instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets and cash and cash equivalents as loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of reporting period date. These are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s financial assets are disclosed in notes 14, 15 and 22. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in note 14.

Financial liabilities

The Group has two categories of financial liabilities, which are financial liabilities measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, and those
financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (designated on initial recognition). Both categories are classified as non-current when
payments fall due greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Financial liabilities are described in further detail in notes 18, 20 and 22.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to
their fair value at each reporting date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group does not cumrently designate any derivatives as hedging instruments. Gains and
losses on derivative instruments that are not designated as hedge instruments are recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
within finance costs.

Fair value estimation for financial liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group's financial liabilities at
fair value primarily comprise contingent consideration payable on acquisitions. The Group uses a variety of methods to determine the fair value, including
pricing models which refiect the specific instrument. Management uses judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting pericd as well as intemal information regarding a variety of probable outcomes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)

2.9. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Trade receivables
with standard payment terms of between 30 to 45 days are recognised and carried at the lower of their original invoiced or recoverable amount. Where the
time value of money is material, receivables are carried at amortised cost. Provision is made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to recover balances in full, the amount of the provision being the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Balances are written off when the probability of recovery is assessed as being remote.

2.10. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts are included within financial liabilities.

2.11. Short-term investments
Short-term investments include cash held on long-term deposits with original maturities of greater than three months.

2.12. Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Share premium recognised on the issue of share capital is stated as the excess consideration received over the nominal value of shares issued, net of any
costs directly attributable to the issue.

2.13. Shares to be issued .
Deferred consideration or shares not yet issued, at the balance sheet date, in respect of business combinations in the form of a fixed number of shares are
recorded in equity as shares to be issued at fair value at the acquisition date.

2.14. Merger reserve
The merger reserve is used where more than 90% of the shares in a subsidiary are acquired and the consideration includes the issue of new shares by the
Company, thereby attracting merger relief under the Companies Act 2006.

2.15. Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16. Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditiona! right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

2.17. Current and deferred income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is not provided on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction, other than a business combination, if at the time of the transaction there is no effect on either accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset or liability is released or settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the profit and loss except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18. Employee benefits

a) Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution plans.

The Group pays contributions to privately administered pension plans on a contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, service period and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest. At each reporting date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised, and the overall charge for those options is transferred from the share-based payment
reserve to accumulated losses.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase in investments in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

2.19, Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Assets held under finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease, with a corresponding liability being recognised for the lower of the fair value of the leased asset
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Assets held under finance
leases are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.20. Foreign currency translation

a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the ‘functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Pounds (£'000), which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the transiation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the year end rates are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Foreign exchange gains and losses on borrowings,
investments and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within finance costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented within operating results.

c) Group companies and joint ventures .

The results and financial position of all subsidiaries (none of which have the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency

different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

i) assets and liabilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

i} income and expenses for each Statement of Comprehensive Income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity within the foreign exchange translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.21. Investments
Investments held by the Company in its subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value. Impairment reviews are
performed if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.

2.22. Government grants

Government grants are recognised when it is reasonable to expect that the grants will be received and that all related conditions will be met, usually on
submission of a valid claim for payment. Government grants are of a revenue nature and are credited to deferred income on receipt. They are then
deducted from the expenditure to which they relate over time.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.23. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

2.24. Exceptional items
These are items which, in management's judgement, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature in order for the user to obtain a proper
understanding of the financial information.

3. Financial risk management
3.1. Financlal risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks arising from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

This note describes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative
information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements. The Group continues to operate in multiple geographies, including
the UK, US and Turkey, which impacts on the Group's financial risk factors. There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial
instrument risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous periods unless
otherwise stated in this note.

The principal financial instruments held by the Group, from which financial instrument risks arise, are as follows:
« trade and other receivables;
« cash at bank;
« trade and other payables; and
« finance leases.

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group's risk management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate
responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and
policies to the Group’s finance function. The Board reviews regular finance reports from the Chief Operating Officer through which it evaluates any risk
exposures with a view to minimising any potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. Transactions that are speculative in nature are
expressly forbidden.

Details regarding the policies that address financial risk are set out below:

(@) Credit risk
Credit risk arises principally from the Group's trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. It is the risk that the counterparty
fails to discharge its obligation in respect of the instruments.

Trade receivables

The nature of the Group’s operations means that most of its current key customers form part of established businesses in the banking and payments sector
and mobile network operators sector. The credit risks are minimised due to the nature of these customers and the concentration of sales to date within
established economies. The Group continually reviews its credit risk policy, taking particular account of future exposure to developing markets and
associated changes in customers’ credit risk profiles.

The carrying amount in the Statement of Financial Position, net of any applicable provisions, represents the amount exposed to credit risk and hence there
is no difference between the carrying amount and the maximum credit risk exposure.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Board formulates the Group's treasury policy objectives and policies which are designed to manage the Group's risk and secure cost-effective funding
for the Group's operations. These objectives include the requirement to minimise risk on investment funds but maintain flexibility. The majority of funds are
currently held in a mix of short-term deposit accounts.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1. Financlal risk factors (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s management of working capital. It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
as they fall due.

The Group's policy is to ensure that it will aiways have sufficient cash within the Group (excluding the joint venture companies) to allow it to meet

its liabilities when they become due and to have such funds available for its cperations. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity
reserve which comprises cash and cash equivalents (note 15) on the basis of expected cash flow. At the reporting date, these projections indicate that the
Group expects to have sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonable expected circumstances for the forthcoming year. The Group
continues to monitor its liquidity position through budgetary procedures and cash flow analysis.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

30 June 2017
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
E'OEIL £'000 i;(l(_!o £'000
Trade and other payables 9,125 - 650 -
Provisions 930 940 872 -
Finance leases 606 185 - -
30 June 2016
Between Between
Less than 1and2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 14,880 - 285 -
Provisions 10,864 4,851 3,165 -
Finance leases 977 892 - -

(c) Market risk
Market risk arises from the Group's use of interest-bearing and foreign cumency financial instruments. There is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk), or foreign exchange rates (currency risk).

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group invests its surplus cash in a spread of fixed-rate term bank deposits to minimise risk and maximise flexibility. In doing so it limits its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates that are inherent in such a market. Overall risk is not regarded as significant and the effect of a one half percentage point
decrease in the average interest rate during the 12 months would have resulted in an increase in post-tax loss for the 12 months of £120,000 (2016:
increase of £328,000) and a decrease in equity of £120,000 (2016: decrease of £328,000).

(i) Currency risk

The Group currently operates internationally, primarily through its subsidiaries in the US and Turkey. The Group has material US Dollar denominated
contracts and a material Euro denominated contract operated from the UK. As a result, the Group’s main exposure to foreign exchange arises from the US
Dollar, Turkish Lira and Euro, and there is limited exposure to other cumrencies. The level of risk is reviewed regularly throughout the year. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, and net investments.

In order to reduce the foreign exchange risk arising, the Group's policy is to allow the operations to settle liabilities denominated in their functional currency
with the funds obtained from the activities arising in that currency. The Group typically holds funds in US Dollar deposits to meet its anticipated short-term
funding requirements for the US subsidiaries. Given the current scale and natural hedging of the Group’s overseas operations, overall foreign currency risk
remains relatively low. The Group currently considers derivative forward exchange contracts, where appropriate, to hedge foreign currency risk on certain
forecast and recognised assets and liabilities. )

A 6% appreciation in the average 2017 US Dollar exchange rate would have increased the Group's loss after tax by £45,000 (2016: increase of £646,000).
At 30 June 2017, the effect on retained eamings of a 6% appreciation in the closing US Dollar exchange rate would be an increase of £2,979,000 (2016:
increase of £88,000). The effect on the foreign exchange reserve of a 6% appreciation in the closing US Dollar exchange rate would be an increase of
£2,677,000 (2016: increase of £215,000).

A 15% appreciation in the average 2017 Turkish Lira exchange rate would have decreased the Group's loss after tax by £88,000 (2016: decrease of
£102,000). At 30 June 2017, the effect on retained eamings of a 15% appreciation in the closing Turkish Lira exchange rate would be an increase of
£698,000 (2016: increase of £719,000). The effect on the foreign exchange reserve of a 15% appreciation in the closing Turkish Lira exchange rate would
be an increase of £695,000 (2016: decrease of £716,000).
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.2. Capital risk management

The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide future returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Group seeks to maintain, at
this stage of its development, sufficient funding drawn primarily from equity to enable the Group to meet its working capital and strategic needs. The Group
may issue new shares or realise value from its existing investments and other assets as deemed necessary.

The Group centrally manages borrowings, investment of surplus funds and financial risks. The objective of holding financial investments is to provide
efficient cash and tax management and effective funding for the Group.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The Directors base their estimates on historical experience and
various other assumptions that they believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about the
carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made a number of judgements and estimations, of which the following are
deemed to have the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements:

4.1. Revenue recognition
Revenue for development and integration services is recognised when the right to consideration is eamed as each project progresses. Provisions against
accrued income are made as and when management becomes aware of objective evidence that the amount of time worked will not be recoverable in full.

The Group sometimes enters into agreements with customers where a product licence is bundled with services. Revenue is recognised separately for each
component if it is considered to represent a separable good or service and a fair value can be reliably established. This consideration requires an element
of judgement.

4.2. Share-based payments

Judgement and estimation are required in determining the fair value of shares at the date of award. The fair value is estimated using valuation techniques
which take into account the award's term, the risk-free interest rate and the expected volatility of the market price of the Company's shares. Judgement and
estimation are also required to assess the number of options expected to vest. Details of share-based payments and the assumptions applied are
disclosed in note 24.

4.3. Going concem

The Directors have prepared projections of the Group's anticipated future results based on their best judgement and estimation of likely future
developments within the business and therefore believe that the assumption that the Group is a going concem is valid. The ﬁnancnal information in this
report has therefore been prepared on the ‘going concem’ basis.

4.4. Development costs

The Group has capitalised internally generated intangible assets as required in accordance with IAS 38. Management has assessed expected contribution
to be generated from these assets and deemed that no adjustment is required to the carrying value of the assets. The recoverable amount of the assets has
been determined based on value in use calculations which require the use of estimates and judgements. Management reviews the assets for impairment on
a regular basis.
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4, Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

4.5. Impairment of assets

IFRS requires management to undertake an annual test for impairment of assets with indefinite lives, including goodwill and, for assets with finite lives, to
test for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

Impairment testing is an area involving management judgement, requiring assessment as to whether the canrying value of assets can be supported by the
fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections which have been discounted at an
appropriate rate. In calculating the net present value of the future cash flows, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain
matters including management's expectations of growth and discount rates. Changing the assumptions selected by management could significantly affect
the Group's impairment evaluation and, hence, results. The Group's review includes the key assumptions related to sensitivity in the cash flow projections.
Further details are provided in note 11.

4.6. Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities require management judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised. In particular, judgement is used when
assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets should be recognised, with consideration given to the timing and level of future taxable income.

4.7. Provisions

Management uses judgement to estimate the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Judgement has been exercised with regard to the length of period for which surplus properties
remain vacant. Judgement has been exercised in respect of the expected settlement of other onerous contracts. Details are set out further in note 19.

5. Revenue
Geographical disclosures
In presenting information on the basis of geography, revenue is based on the location of the customers.
Revenues
= 2017 2016

£'000 £’00_0.
United Kingdom ’ : 31,663 41,878
Americas 11,857 18,588
Turkey 6,079 5,166
Europe 732 1,476
Rest of World 574 457
Total ] 59‘905 67,565
Revenue has been allocated to geographical segments based upon the location of the customer.
Products and services

Revenues

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Product licences . 1,661 1,111
Platform supply and transactions 28,808 32,830
Development and integration services 20,436 33,624
Total 50,905 67,565

Product licences are sales where the customer has the ability to exploit the licensed functionality upon delivery and includes certain term-based and
perpetual licences (see note 2.3 for further information).
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6. Operating loss
This is stated after charging/(crediting):

2017 2016
Group . Note £'000 £'00_0_
Employee benefit expense 25 29,485 40,857
Depreciation 10 2,082 2,814
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 10 - 3,268
Amortisation 1 18,464 25,465
Impairment of intangible assets 1 4,000 172,728
Impairment of investment in joint venture 13 (28) 941
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment @n (35)
Net foreign currency differences ) (245) 306
Operating lease expense 2,607 3,832
Included within the operating loss is an amount in respect of research and development of £4,914,000 (2016: £7,340,000).
Exceptional items comprise charges/(credits) as follows:

2017 2016

£000 £000
Exceptional income - (6.874)
Onerous contracts (7,225) (3,190)
Restructuring costs 341 8,734
Surplus property costs (1,079) 4,382
Strategic review and corporate development costs 1,356 440

(6,607) 3,492

The exceptional income in the prior year related to an amount received in respect of a revision to a customer contract.

Onerous contracts refate to those contracts under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the cbligations under the contract exceed the economic benefit
expected to be received under it. In particular, obligations associated with a number of contracts with a third party IT and business services provider were
provided in prior periods. The credit for onerous contracts in the current period reflects the settiement of the remainder of these obligations at amounts less
than previously provided.

Restructuring costs are associated with a number of restructuring activities undertaken and principally relate to redundancy and termination costs. There
were no restructuring costs incurred in the year beyond what had already been provided for in the prior year. In addition, the associated property
restructuring costs in the prior year resulted in a charge for several onerous property lease contracts. The credit for surplus property costs in the period
reflects the successful assignment of the majority of the remaining surplus properties.

Strategic review and corporate development costs related primarily to professional advisor fees incurred in respect of a number of corporate development
projects.

7. Auditors’ remuneration
The analysis of the auditors' remuneration is as follows:

2017 2016
Group _ _ _ _ £000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and thelr associates for the audit of the Company’s financial statements 73 91
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group:
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 162 181
Total audit fees 235 272
Other services
Audit-related assurance services 32 30
Tax compliance services 51 4
Tax advisory services 3 224
Total other services 86 258

Total fees 321 530
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8. Finance income and expenses
2017 2016
Group £000 £000
Finance income
Interest income on short-term deposits 120 328
Net foreign exchange gains on financing activities 76 1,647
—_ 196 1,975
Finance costs
Interest payable on overdrafts and loans (66) (56)
Interest payable on finance leases (33) (144)
99 200
97 1,775
9. Income tax
Recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income
2017 2016
Note £'000 £000
Current tax
Current tax, overseas withholding and other taxes (2) (6)
Other taxes (50) (46)
‘Total current tax (52) (52)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 21 1,021 9,763
Total deferred tax 1,021 9,763
Total tax credit In the Statement of Comprehensive Income 969 9,711

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted on 18 November 2015. These included reductions to the main rate to 19% from 1 Agpril
2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020. A further reduction to the main tax rate to 17% from 1 April 2020 was announced in the budget on 16 March 2016. As

these charges had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date their effects are included in these financial statements.

The credit for the year is lower (2016: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.75% (2016: 20%). The differences are explained

below:
2017 2016

Note £000  £000
Loss before income tax (22,663) (243,082)
Tax calculated at UK effective tax rate of 19.75% (2016: 20%) (4,476) (48,616)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,387 37,804
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 1,380 9,121
Use of losses for which a deferred tax asset has not previously been recognised ) (16)
Overseas withholding and other taxes 52 52
Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates 21 - (13)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 697 (8,055)
Joint ventures’ results reported net of tax - 12
Total tax In the Statement of Comprehensive Income - (969) (9,711)
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10. Property, plant and equipment
Office Computer Leasehold

equipment equipment Improvements Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 July 2015 1,247 8,289 5,425 14,961
Exchange differences 139 435 159 733
Additions 4 1,504 127 1,635
Disposals (319) (5,439) - (5,758)
As at 30 June 2016 1,071 4,789 - 5711 11,571
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 July 2015 518 4,511 2,657 7,686
Exchange differences 79 139 4 222
Charge ’ 217 2,042 555 2,814
Impairment 325 1,606 1,337 3,268
Disposals (319) (5,438) - (5,757)
As at 30 June 2016 820 2,860 4,553 8|233
Net book value o
As at 1 July 2015 729 3,778 2,768 7,275
As at 30 June 2016 251 1,929 1,158 3,338
Cost
As at 1 July 2016 1,071 4,789 5,711 11,571
Exchange differences (173) (47) (103) (323)
Additions 54 182 272 508
Disposals — (18) (41) (1,101) (1,160)
As at 30 June 2017 934 _4,883 4,779 10,596
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment
As at 1 July 2016 820 2,860 4,553 8,233
Exchange differences (99) (47) 8 (138)
Charge 115 1,163 804 2,082
Disposals (18) (40) (1,092) (1,150)
As at 30 June 2017 818 3,936 4_‘_273 9,027
Net book value )
As at 1 July 2016 251 1,929 1,158 3,338
As at 30 June 2017 116 947 506 1,569

The impairment charge in the prior year related to the write-off of leasehold improvements associated with certain vacated property leases and computer
equipment which had become redundant mainly as a consequence of the restructuring activities conducted. Fully depreciated and impaired assets have

been treated as disposals as they have no residual value.

The Company does not have any property, plant or equipment.

Propenty, plant and equipment includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:
2017

2016
Computer Leasehold ’ Computer  Leasehold
equipment Improvements Total equipment Improvements Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost 1,516 - 1,516 1,516 763 2,279
Accumulated depreciation (878) - (878) (471) (357) (828)
Net book value as at 30 June 638 - 638 1,045 406 1,451

The Group leases various computer equipment assets under non-cancellable finance lease arrangements (see note 20).

The lease terms are between three and five years.
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11. Intangible assets
Purchased
Inteliectuat and acquired  Capitalised
Customer property Acquired software development

Goodwill contracts rights technology icences costs Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost i
As at 1 July 2015 204,930 46,167 277 27,077 17,883 66,173 362,507
Exchange differences 25,226 5,743 - 2,352 305 1,257 34,883
Additions - - - - 1,988 6,333 8,321
Disposals (183,230) (8,595) (277) (6,422)  (11,525) (4262) (214,311)
As at 30 June 2016 46,926 . 43315 - - 23,007 8,651 69,501 191,400
Accumulated amortisation and impalrment
As at 1 July 2015 41,770 16,819 252 15,553 15,347 56,493 146,234
Exchange differences 18,208 4,096 - 1,963 335 527 25,129
Charge - 15,162 15 6,017 2,253 2,018 25,465
Impairment 162,738 7,464 10 2,200 316 - 172,728
Disposals (183,230) (8,595) _(277) (6,422)  (11,525) (4262) (214,311)
As at 30 June 2016 39,486 - 34,946 - 19,311 6,726 54,776 155,245
Net book value
As at 1 July 2015 163,160 29,348 25 11,524 2,536 9,680 216,273
As at 30 June 2016 7,440 g@GS - 3,696 1 ,492_5 14,725 36,155
Cost
As at 1 July 2016 46,926 43,315 - 23,007 8,651 69,501 191,400
Exchange differences (140) (1,426) - - (111) 234 (1,443)
Additions - - 7 - 498 3,670 4175
Disposals (30,647)  (33,707) - (23,007) 52 (59) (87,368)
As at 30 June 2017 16,139 8,182 7 - 9,090 73,346 106,764
Accumulated amortisation and impalrment
As at t July 2016 39,486 34,946 - 19,311 6,726 54,776 155,245
Exchange differences (140) (823) - 1 (164) 99 (1,027)
Charge - 6,423 - 3,666 1,721 6,654 18,464
Impairment 4,000 - - - - - 4,000
Disposals (30,647)  (33,707) - (22,978) 55 {59) (87,336)
As at 30 June 2017 12,699 _ 6,839 - - 8,338 61,470 89,346
Net book value
As at 1 July 2016 7,440 8,369 - 3,696 1,925 14,725 36,156
As at 30 June 2017 3,440 1_.:_!__43 7 - 752 1&76 17,418

Fully amortised and impaired assets have been treated as disposals as they have no residual value.

Software includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under a finance lease:

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Cost 883 883
Accumulated depreciation (538) (315)
Net book value as at 30 June 345 568

The Company does not have any intangible assets.
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11. Intangible assets (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill
The Group annually tests goodwill for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating unit (CGU’) that is expected to benefit from that business
combination. The CGUs identified in the current year are the same as those identified in the prior year.

The carrying amounts of goodwill at 30 June, post impairment, and the CGUs to which they are allocated, are as follows:

2017 2016

£'000 £'000

Content 2,440 2,440
Big Radical - 4,000
MEA . . 1,000 1,000
’ ' 3,440 7,440

In order to determine whether impairments are required, the Groub estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs. The calculation is
based on projecting future cash flows and a discount factor is applied to obtain a ‘value in use’ which is the recoverable amount.

Key assumptions

The value in use calculation includes estimates about the future financial performance of each CGU. The cash fiow projections cover five years based on
management-approved financial budgets for the first year, and reflect management’s expectations of the medium-term operating performance of the CGU
and its growth prospects for the subsequent years. Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations are the revenue growth rates which directly influence the forecasted operating cash flows, as well as
the discount rate applied. In determining the key assumptions, management has taken into account the current economic climate and the resulting impact
on expected growth and discount rates, as applicable to the Group’s business and industry. Average annual revenue growth rates used reflect past
experience and are considered appropriate. The discount rate applied represents a pre-tax rate that refiects the Group's weighted average cost of capital,
adjusted for specific risks associated with each individual CGU.

Following the calculation of value in use it was determined that the future cash flows did not support the carrying value of goodwill in the Big Radical CGU,
and consequently the remaining balance was impaired in full.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations are as follows:

2017 2016
Americas Content Big Radica) MEA _ Americas Content  Big Radical MEA
CGU CGU CGU CGU CGU CGU CGU CGU
Discount rate 17.0% 14.0% 16.0% 18.0% 17.0% 12.0% 16.0% 18.0%
Medium-term revenue growth rate (1.0%) 10.6% % 10.2% (16.2%) 13.2% 9.1% 8.7%
Long-terrn growth rate 3.0% 3.0% -% 2.5% 2.3% 1.5% 2.0% 2.5%

Sensitivity analysis

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the carrying value of goodwill allocated to each CGU. The Board has considered downside scenarios,
including reductions in growth and increases to operating costs. The following table sets out the impact of the individual sensitivities on goodwill and other
intangible assets:

2017 2016
Amerlcas___Content Blg Radlcal _____MEA___Americas Content _ Blg Radical — MEA
Sensitised medium term growth rate (18.3%) 7.1% % 4.8% (20.1%) 71% 4.6% 5.0%
Potential impaiment £1m £-m £-m £2m £3m £-m £1m £5m
Increase in operating costs 10.0% 10.0% -% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
Potential impairment £1m £-m £-m £-m £3m _£-m £2m . £-m

The potential impairment stated above reflects the total impairment that would be charged against the assets allocated to that CGU. It would first be
allocated against goodwill balances summarised above, then to other assets allocated to that CGU.
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12. Investments In subsidiaries

2017 2016
Company only £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 July 250,258 250,382
Capital contributions relating to share-based payments . 1,353 (124)
As at 30 June 251,611 250,258
Provision
As at 1 July 216,799 63,199
Increase in provision - 153,600
As at 30 June 216,799 216,799
Net book amount -
As at 30 June 34,812 33,459

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration paid, and this cost is tested periodically for impairment. As a
consequence of the organisational changes conducted during the prior financial year, the Company provided for a number of investments in subsidiary

companies.

The capital contribution relating to share-based payments relates to share options granted by the Company to employees of subsidiary undertakings in the

Group.

A full list of the undertakings whose results or financial position are included within the Company's annual financial statements is set out below.

Proportion of
Country of voting rights
incorporation and ordinary
(or registration) Registered share capital
Mne and operation number held Nature of business
Direct subsidiary undertakings
Monitise Group Limited United Kingdom 05590897 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Emerging Markets Limited * United Kingdom 06733473 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Yazilim A.S. Turkey 100% Mobile phone banking and payments services
PT Monitise Mobile Indonesia Indonesia® 100% Non-trading
Monitise Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong? 100% Non-trading
The Global Voucher Group Limited United Kingdom 09051128 100% Digital marketing solutions
Indirect subsidiary undertakings
Monitise Europe Limited United Kingdom 04831976 100% Mobile phone banking and payments services
Monitise International Limited United Kingdom 05556711 100% Mobile phone banking and payments services
Monitise Americas, Inc. USA 100% Mobile phone banking and payments services
Big Radical Limited United Kingdom 07043006 100% Mobile innovation and design agency
Grapple Mobile USA, Inc. USA 100% Non-trading
Monitise, Inc. USA 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Cyprus Holdings No. 1 Limited Cyprus 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Cyprus Holdings No. 2 Limited Cyprus 100% Intermediate holding company
eMerit Solutions Ltd (in liquidation) United Kingdom 07190106 100% In members' voluntary liquidation
Last Second Ticketing Ltd United Kingdom 07034839 100% Digital marketing solutions
Revivve Limited ' United Kingdom 10640161 100% Digital marketing solutions
Mobile Money Network Limited (in liquidation) United Kingdom 07153130 100% In members' voluntary liquidation
Vouchacha Ltd (in liquidation) United Kingdom 06930720 100% In members' voluntary liquidation
Grapple Mobile Limited (in liquidation) United Kingdom 05814266 100% In members’ voluntary liquidation
eMerit Solutions (UK) Ltd (in liquidation) United Kingdom 07741101 100% In members' voluntary liquidation
Monitise Americas, LLC USA 100% Non-trading
Monitise Solutions (HK) Ltd Hong Kong 100% Non-trading
! exemption from audit for a subsidiary undertaking has been claimed for these companies under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.
2 includes indirect holdings
Country of
incorporation
(or registration)
and operation Address
Addresses
United Kingdom Medius House, 2 Sheraton Street, London, UK, W1F 8BH
Turkey ITU Teknokent ARI 2, B Block, Maslak, 34467, Istanbul, Turkey
Indonesia JI. Kramat Raya No.43, Jakarta 10450, Indonesia
Hong Kong 2001-2, Level 20, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
USA Sth Floor, 1 Embarcadero Centre, San Francisco, CA 94111
Cyprus Elenion Building, 5§ Th Dervis Street, CY-1066 Nicosia, Cyprus
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13. Investments In Joint ventures

2017 2016
Group £000 £000
Cost
As at 1 July 1,044 940
Additional investments - 500
Share of losses (28) (395)
Exchange differences - (1)
As at 30 June 1,016 1,044
Provision for impairment
As at 1 July 1,044 440
Increase in provision - 941
Utilisation of impairment provision (28) 337
As at 30 June 1,016 1,044
Net book amount
As at 30 June s -

The carrying amount of the investment comprises the cost of the investment together with the Group's share of post-acquisition losses. The Group's share

of gains/(losses) of joint ventures included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is stated after the utilisation of the impairment

provision.

Movida India Private Limited

On 22 June 2010, the Group set up a joint venture in India, with Visa Intemational Services Association, via Monitise Cyprus Holdings No. 2 Limited, an

intermediate Group holding company, diluting its 100% shareholding of Monitise India Private Limited, a company incorporated in India, to a 50%
shareholding. Monitise India Private Limited provided mobile phone-initiated banking and payments services in India. On 19 July 2011, Monitise india

Private Limited changed its name to Movida India Private Limited. In March 2015, it was decided to wind down this joint venture and, consequently, an
impairment charge of £440,000 was recorded in the year ended 30 June 2015. Of this impairment provision, an amount of £28,000 was utilised during the
year to reflect the Group's share of losses. Movida India Private Limited is a private company and there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

Syntheo Limited

On 30 June 2015, the Group entered into an agreement to set up a joint venture with Banco Santander, purchasing a 50% share in Syntheo Limited, a
company incorporated in England and Wales. Syntheo Limited was established to invest in FinTech businesses with the potential to redefine and support
financial services globalfy. During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group recorded a provision of £94 1,000 against the remaining investment for this

entity. Syntheo Limited is a private company and there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

Summarised financlal Information tor joint ventures

Summarised balance sheet 2017 2016
£000 £'000
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 185 1,066
Other current assets 1,849 63
Total current assets 2,044 1,129
Other current liabilities (including trade payables) (23) (19)
Total current liabilities (23) (19)
Non-current
Assets - 6,000
Net assels 2,021 7,110
Summarised statement of comprehensive Income 2017 2016
-— £'000 £'000
Revenue - 270
Depreciation and amortisation - (166)
Interest income 8 7
Pre-tax loss (5,117) (852)
Income tax expense - 42
Post-tax loss (5,117) (810)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive expense (5117) (810)

Dividends received from joint venture

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the joint ventures adjusted for differences in accounting policies
between the Group and the joint ventures (and not the Group's share of those amounts).
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Reconcliiation of summarised financial information
The reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of the interest in joint ventures is as follows:
2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Net assets at 1 July 7,110 6,884
Additional investments - 1,000
Loss for the year (5,117) (810)
Exchange differences 28 36
Netassets at 30 June 2,021 7,110
Group interest in joint ventures 1,016 3,544
Provision for unrealised profits on transactions with joint ventures - (2,500)
Impairment of investments in joint ventures (1,016) (1,044)
Carrylng value C. -
14, Trade and other recelvables
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£°000 £000 £'000 £000
Due within one year
Trade receivables 6,170 8,264 - -
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables (522) (1,031) - -
Trade receivables - net 5,648 7,233 - -
Other taxes and social security 308 1,465 - -
Other receivables 124 243 - -
Accrued income 3,494 3,533 2 8
Prepayments 1,509 3,496 76 196
Amounts due from Group undertakings - - 197 79
Prepayments and other recelvables 5,435 8,737 275 283
Total trade and other receivables due within one year 11,083 15,970 275 283
Due after one year
Other debtors 649 370 - -
Total trade and other receivables due after one year 649 370 - -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2017 is the camrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. In determining the recoverability
of trade receivables, the Group considers the ageing of each debtor and any change in the circumstances of the individual receivable. Due to this,
management believes there is no further credit risk provision required in excess of that stated above for doubtful receivables. Other receivables principally
comprise deposits and employee related amounts.

Included in accrued income falling due within one year is an amount of £500,000 (2016: £500,000) which relates to payments for a product licence.
Amounts due from group undertakings relate to working capital funding.

The value of trade and other receivables quoted in the table above also represents the fair value of these items.

Trade receivables are considered impaired if they are not considered recoverable. As at 30 June 2017, trade receivables of £1,194,000 (2016: £1,459,000)

were past due but not impaired. The Group considers any change in the credit quality of trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the quality of the customer base.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables and impairment is as follows:

207 2016

Trade Impalrment Trade Impairment

receivables provision receivables provision

£000 £'000 2'(20 £000

Current and not impaired 4,454 - 5,774 -
Up to 3 months 644 (252) 1,624 (252)
3 to 6 months 267 (42) 246 (164)
Over 6 months 805 (228) 620 (615)
6,170 (522) 8,264 (1,031)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2017 2016

£'000 £000

Pounds Sterling 6,885 12,167
US Dollars 2,366 2,068
Turkish Lira 1,889 923
Euros 228 620
Indonesian Rupiah 364 521
Canadian Dollars - 41
11,732 16,340
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14. Trade and other recelvables (continued)

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2017 2016
. £'000 £000
As at 1 July 1,031 376
Movement in provision ) (509) 655
As at 30 June i 522 1,031
There are no other financial assets that are past due or impaired.
15. Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 22,235 42,089 5,175 15,832
16. Net funds
Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note £'000 £000 £’029 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 15 22,235 42,089 5,175 15,832
Finance leases 20 (780) (1,809) LI '
Net funds ] ] ) 21,455 40,280 5,175 15,832

17. Related parties

Group

Joint ventures

Movida India Private Limited

The Group has a 50% interest in a joint venture, Movida India Private Limited. During the year, revenue of £nil (2016: £nil) was recognised and costs of £nil
(2016: £nil) were recharged to Movida India Private Limited. The Group provided a capital contribution of £nil (2016: £nil). The outstanding receivable
balance at 30 June 2017 was £nil (2016: £nil) in trade receivables.

Syntheo Limited
The Group has a 50% interast in a joint venture, Syntheo Limited, which was incorporated on 12 June 2015. During the year, revenue of £nil (2016: £nil)
was recognised and costs of £nil (2016: £nil) were charged to Syntheo Limited. The Group provided a capital contribution of £nil (2016: £500,000).

Further details on investments in joint ventures are included in note 13.

Key management personne!
The compensation of key management personnel, being Directors, members of the Executive Management team and senior technical staff, was as follows:

2017 2016
£'000 £'000
Short-term employee benefits 2,902 3,359
Post-employment benefits 23 92
Share-based payments 505 430
3,430 3,881
Company
‘Subsidiaries

The Company was recharged £1,875,000 (2016: £2,329,000) by subsidiaries for administration costs incurred on its behatf. Amounts receivable from
subsidiaries total £197,000 (2016: £79,000), which are payable on demand.
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18. Trade and other payables
Group Comganx
2017 2016 2017 2016
— £000 £000 £000 £'000
Due within one year )
Trade payables 1,386 4,337 26 220
Other taxes and social security 1,166 2,407 - -
Accruals 7,354 9,709 1,479 1,783
Deferred income 3,890 4,340 - -
Other payables 385 834 1 2
Amounts due to Group undertakings _- - 3,138 3,204
Other Eﬂles due within one year 12,795 17,290 4,618 4,989
Irade and other payables due within one year 14,181 21,627 4,644 5,209
Due after one year
Other payables 650 285 - -
Daferred income 438 665 - -
Other payables due after one year ‘ 1,088 950 - -
Total trade and other payables 15,269 22,577 4,644 5,209

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases, ongoing costs and transfer from provisions. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms. The Directors consider that the carrying
amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

19. Provisions

Group Company
Onerous
Reorganisation  contracts Total Reorganisation Total
Group £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
As at 1 July 2016 2,203 16,677 18,880 718 718
Additional provisions in the year 255 246 501 - -
Release of provision (70) (9,160) (9,230) - -
Utilisation of provision (1,535) (5,943) (7,478) (36) (36)
Exchange differences 41 28 69 — _-
As at 30 June 2017 834 1,848 2,742 682 682
2017 2016 2017 2016
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Due within one year ~930 10,864 682 565
Due after one year 1,812 8,016 - 153

Onerous contracts included provisions for surplus properties as a result of the reorganisations undertaken and obligations associated with a number of
contracts with a third party IT and business services provider. Additionally, provision has been made for the ongoing costs of closing the Group's Far East
investments and the finalisation of the restructuring activities.

The release of provision related to both the successful renegotiation of the remaining onerous contracts with a third party IT and business services provider
and also the successful assignment of the majority of the remaining surplus properties.

20. Financlal liabilitlies

Grou, Compan!
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note £'000 £000 £000 £000
Due within one year
Finance leases 596 1,002 - -
Financlal llabllities due within one year 596 1,002 - -
"Due after one year
Finance leases 184 807 - -
Financial liabilities due after one year 184 807 - -
Total financial liabilities 7680 1,809 - -

The Group has leased certain of its office furniture and equipment and computer hardware under finance leases. The average lease term is betwsen three
to five years. The Group has options to purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the lease terms. The Group's obligations under finance
leases are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets.

Financial liabilities in the prior year included amounts in respect of contingent consideration on acquisitions, which were determined an certain performance
criteria.
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20. Financlal liabilitles (continued)

35

Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging from 2% to 14% per annum (2016: 2% to 14%).

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

Future minimum lease

Present value of minimum

ents lease ents

2017 2016 2017 2016

£000 £000 2;020 £'000

Less than one year 606 977 596 1,002

Between one and five years 185 892 184 807

91 1,869 780 1,809

Less: future finance charges 1) (60) — -

Present value of minimum lease payments 780 1,809 780 1,809

21. Deferred tax liabilities

The movement in the deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as follows:

2017 2016

Group Note £'000 £000

As at 1 July (1,021)  (10,208)

Credited to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 9 1,021 9,763

Cre%harge) to other comprehensive income - exchange differences - (576)

As at 30 June - (1,021)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, is as follows:

2017 2016
Tax losses Tax losses
Group £'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets
As at 1 July 3,384 2,683
(Charg_g)/credit to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (927) 701
As at 30 June 2,457 3,384
2017 2016
Acquisition Acquisition
related Caphalised related  Capitalised
Intanglble devetopment intangible development
assets costs Total assets costs Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Deferred tax liabilities
As at 1 July 1,021 3,384 4,405 10,208 2,683 12,891
(Credit)/charge to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (1,021) (927) (1,948) (9,750) 701 (9,049)
Effect of change in tax rates - - - (13) - (13)
Exchange differences -~ _- " 576 - 576
As at 30 June - 2,457 2,457 1,021 3,384 4,405
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:
2017 2016
£'000 £000
Deferred tax assets - "
Deferred tax liabilities - (1,021)
- (1,021)
The timing of the recoverability/(settiement) of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is set out below:
2017 2016
“Due within __ Due after Due within___ Due after
oneyear  one year Total one year one year Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets 1,244 1,213 2,457 - 3,384 3,384
Deferred tax liabilities (1,244) (1,213) (2,457) 1,021) (3,384) (4,405)
- - - 1,021) - (1,021)

The amount of unutilised trading tax losses at 30 June 2017 for which a deferred tax asset has been recognised is £nil (2016: £nil).

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of approximately £83,000,000 (2016: £79,000,000) that are available for offset against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses where it is the view of the
Directors that future taxable profits are not deemed probable to be available in the short term to offset against these losses.

Details of changes to tax rates are included in note 9.
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22. Financlal Instruments
Accounting classification of financial assets and liabliitles
Fair value Other financial
through  [iabilities at

Loans and profit  amortised
receivables and loss cost Total
Groug _ £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
As at 30 June 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 22,235 - - 22,235
Trade & ather receivables excluding non-financial assets 5,772 - - 5,772
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial liabilities - - (3,587) (3,587)
Finance lease liabilities - - (780) (780)
Total 28,007 - (4,367) 23,640
As at 30 June 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 42,089 - - 42,089
Trade & other receivables excluding non-financial assets 7,476 - - 7,476
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial liabilities - - (7,863) (7,863)
Finance lease liabilities - - (1,809) (1,809)
Total 49,565 - 19,672) 39,893
Fair value Other financial
through  Babifities at
Loans and profit amortised
receivables and loss cost Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
As at 30 June 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 5,175 - - 5175
Trade & other receivables excluding non-financial assets 197 - - 197
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial liabilities - - (3,165) {3,165)
Total 5,:‘!12r - EI1G5) 2|207
As at 30 June 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 15,832 - - 15,832
Trade & other receivables excluding non-financial assets 79 - - 79
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial fiabilities - - (3,426) (3,426)
Total 15,911 - (3,426) 12,485

Contingent consideration liabilities

Contingent consideration liabilities are valued using an income approach based on expected future revenue and eamings. The fair vatue of these liabilities
could change based on the expected future performance of the business to which they relate. The following table presents the changss in contingent
consideration liabilities:

2017 2016
£'000 2'09_0_

As at 1 July - 9,775
Settlement of contingent consideration - (9,775)

As at 30 June -
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23. Ordinary shares, share premium and other reserves
Allotted and tully paid £0.01 nominal value shares

Ordinary Share
Number shares premium
- . . . of shares £'000 £'000
As at 1 July 2015 2,168,231,436 21,682 383,721
Issue of new shares 79,091,540 791 -
Exercise of share options 4,620,037 46 - -
As at 1 July 2016 2,251,943,013 22,519 383,721
Issue of new shares 64,594,429 647 -
Exercig of share options . . . . 1,327,848 13 6
As at 30 June 2017 - 2,317,865,290 23,179 383,727
Reconciliation of shares issued
Ordinary Reverse Share-based
Number of Ordinary shares to be Share Merger Acquisition Payment
shares shares issued premium reserve reserve Reserve Total
e — £'000 £000 Q'QL £000 £000 . £000 £'000
‘As at 1 July 2015 2,168,231,436 21,682 2,511 383,721 228,672 (25,321) 40,863 652,128
Employee share-based payment 4,620,037 46 - - - - (274) (228)
exercises
Share-based payments to non- - - - - - - 16,468 16,468
employees
Issue of shares relating to prior year 79,091,540 791 - - 9,511 - (470) 9,832
business combinations - —
As at 1 Juiy 2016 2,251,943,013 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 (25,321) 56,587 678,200
Employee share-based payment 1,327,848 13 - 6 - - (283) (264)
exercises
Share-based payments to non- - - - - - - 4107 4,107
employees -
Issue of shares relating to prior year 64,594,429 647 (2,511) - 2,466 - (602) -
business combinations _ -
une 2017 2,317,865,290 23179 -.383,727 240,649 (25,321) 59,809 682,043

Share capltal and share premium
During the current year, 1,327,848 (2016: 4,620,037) new Ordinary shares were issued as part of an exercise of share options and warrants (see note 24).

During the current year, 64,594,429 (2016: 79,091,540) new Ordinary shares were issued in relation to prior year business combinations.

Ordinary shares to be Issued

Ordinary shares to be issued represents the issue of shares in respect of the setlement of deferred consideration for the acquisition of The Global Voucher
Group Limited, including the trade and certain assets and liabilities of Markco Media, on 26 June 2014, During the current year the Company issued
43,770,351 shares in respect of the finalisation of this acquisition.

Other reserves
The merger reserve of £240,649,000 (2016: £238,183,000) relates to the de-merger from Morse plc, the previous parent company of the Monitise Group of
companies, and acquisitions where the consideration has been share-based.

Relating to acquisitions, the difference between the fair value of consideration and the nominal value of shares issued has been credited to the merger
reserve on issue of the shares, with a transfer from the Ordinary shares to be issued reserve where necessary.

The reverse acquisition reserve of £25,321,000 (2016: £25,321,000) was also created at the time of the de-merger. Under IFRS 3 "Business Combinations”,
this transaction was accounted for as a reverse acquisition, with the legal subsidiary having been deemed to have acquired the legal parent.

The foreign currency transfation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the transiation of foreign subsidiaries and investments in
joint ventures.

The Group share-based payment reserve at 30 June 2017 is £59,809,000 (2016: £56,587,000) and is discussed in detail in note 24.

For the purposes of presentation on the Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial Position, the share-based payment reserve, merger reserve and
reverse acquisition reserve have been combined and disclosed as ‘Other reserves'.
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24, Share-based payments

Equity-settied share-based payments plans

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment plans. A summary of the main terms of the arrangements is given below, with
particular reference made to the terms of those grants for which the share-based payment expense has been recognised.

The Group recognised total expenses in relation to share-based payments as follows:

2017 2016

£'000 £'000
Equity-settied share-based payments 1,065 (3,612)
Share based payments for prior business combinations 3,042 20,080
Total 4,107 16,468

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2017 2016

Number of Welighted Number of Welghted

options average options average

exerclse exercise

Group price price
As at 1 July 115,719,853 3.4p 100,994,594 5.9p
Granted 35,542,626 14p 111,968,107 1.4p
Exercised (1,327,848) 14p (4,620,037) 1.0p
Lapsed_ (39,550,380) 5.3p (92,622,811) 3.6p
As at 30 June ) 110,384,251 2.2p 115,719,853 3.4p

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exercised during the year was 2.5p (2016: 3.5p). At 30 June 2017, 5,903,998 options
were exercisable (2016: 13,394,084). The weighted average exercise price of exercisable options was 19.8p (2016: 20.75p). Options outstanding at 30
June 2017 have a range of exercise prices of 1.0p to 32.8p (2016: 1.0p to 45.6p).

Sharesave Scheme (‘SAYE')

The Monitise Sharesave Scheme enables UK staff to acquire shares in the Company through monthly savings of up to £500 over a three year period, at the
end of which, and subject to interest rates in effect, they also receive a tax free bonus. The savings and bonus may then be used to purchase shares at the
option price, which is set at the beginning of the invitation period and usually at a discount of 20% to the then prevailing market price of the Company’s
shares. For the option to vest normally, staft must remain as employees of Monitise over a three year period and continue to contribute.

In calculating the fair value of the SAYE scheme the Group has used a Black Scholes model and an assumption of a nil dividend yield. The following table
sets out the other assumptions made during the current and comparative years:

Grant date 2Nov2016 9 Nov 2015
Share price at issue date 2.6p 3.6p
Exercise price 2.0p 2.2p
Fair value per option 1.7p 2.4p
Number granted 14,958,978 31,169,819
Risk free rate used in valuation 0.24% 0.91%
Volatility used in valuation 92.8% 87.0%
Expected life (years) 3.08 3.06
Expected exercise date used in valuation 1 Dec 2019 1 Dec 2018

Equity-settled share-based payment plans

Performance Share Plan (‘PSP’)

A Performance Share Plan is in place. Options over shares may be awarded conditional on the achievement of performance conditions with vesting typically
after three years subject to the staff remaining employed by the Group, or may be awarded under this plan with no performance conditions, such that for the
option to vest, staff must remain as employees of Monitise over the vesting period.

On the acquisition of Monitise Americas, inc. (previously Clairmail, Inc.), outstanding options held by Monitise Americas, Inc. employaes were replaced by
PSP share options over Monitise plc shares. These PSP options vested over their original vesting periods as granted. The portion of the provisional fair
value of these options relating to pre-acquisition service was included in the acquisition consideration. The Group recognised a share-based payment
charge in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the remainder of the vesting period.

Alongside awards made during the year ended 30 June 2017, certain awards from previous years were cancelled in order to maximise the effectiveness of
current incentives whilst operating within available headroom constraints.

Assumptions used In the valuation of share-based payment arrangements

In calculating the fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the Group has used a Monte Carlo model in cases where market-based
performance conditions have to be met and the Black Scholes model where the share option has only non-market conditions. Management has made a
number of assumptions in respect of the calculation of an IFRS 2 charge for the Monitise Group's employee share option schemes.

The expected life of the cptions is the average period to exercise which has been assumed to occur and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns
that may occur. Volatility was calculated with reference to similar FTSE AIM entities and the historical performance of the Company, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome. The risk free interest rate is the expected retum on UK Gilts over the expected term of the options.
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24, Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settied share-based payment plans

Performance conditions

Except as detailed in the table below for certain options issued, vesting of the Performance Share Pian is now dependent on performance conditions based
on achievement of certain revenue and EBITDA targets. The Group also reserves the right to reduce the number of Ordinary shares over which awards
vest if overall financial performance is not adequately reflected in the targets achieved.

The following table sets out the assumptions for schemes with revenue and EBITDA vesting hurdles. In calculating the fair value of these a Black Scholes
mode! and an assumption of a nil dividend yield have been used.

Grantdate 17 Mar 2016 2Ot 2015

Share price at issue date 2.7p 2.9
Exercise price 1.0p 1.0p
Fair value per option 2.1p 2.2p
Number granted/modified 44,654,500 25,770,000
Risk free rate used in valuation 0.48% 0.72%
Volatility used in valuation 95.2% 86.2%
Expected life (years) 3.00 3.17
Expected exercise date used in valuation 17 Mar 2019 2 Dec 2018

The following table sets out the assumptions for schemes where employees must only remain with Monitise for the options to vest. In calculating the fair
value of these a Black Scholes model and an assumption of a nil dividend yield have been used.

Grant date 16 Mar 2017 11 Sep 2016 16 Mar 2017 30Jun 2016 20Oct2015 2 Oct2015
Share price at issue date 2.4p 2.6p 2.4p 2.7p 2.9p 2.9p
Exercise price 1.0p 1.0p 2.0p 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p
Fair value per option 1.8p 2.0p 1.4p 2.1p 2.2p 2.2p
Number granted 11,950,000 8,384,000 249,648 2,725,000 6,480,000 6,480,000
Risk free rate used in valuation 0.23% 0.18% 0.23% 0.17% 0.72% 0.72%
Volatility used in valuation 93.8% 93.1% 93.8% 95.6% 86.2% 86.2%
Expected life (years) 2.99 3.00 2.7 2N 3.17 3.17

Expected exercise date used in valuation 10 Mar 2017 11 Sep 2019 1 Dec 2019 17 Mar 2018 2 Dec 2018 2 Dec 2018
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25. Employee benefit expense and Directors’ emojuments
2017 2016
Group £'000 £'000
Employees (including Directors)
Wages and salaries 24,437 37,696
Social security costs 3,370 5,649
Share-based payments 1,065 (3,612)
Other pension costs 613 1,124
- 29,485 40,857
Monthly average number of employees (including Directors)
Management and administration 52 81
Sales and technical 376 554
428 635
The Group has defined contribution pension schemes available to all employees.
Company
Directors’ emoluments 2017 2016
£'000 £'_9_0_(_)_
Aggregate emoluments 880 770
Gain made on exercise of share options - 6
Pension contributions - 23
880 799
2017 2016
Emoluments of the highest paid Director £'000 £000
Aggregate emoluments, including £nil (2016: £5,550) in respect of gain made on exercise of share options 343 332
Pension contributions - 18
Total 343 350
There was one Director accruing benefits under defined contribution schemes during the year (2016: three).
26. Reconcilliation of net loss to net cash used In operating actlvities
Group Compan
2017 2016 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Loss before Income tax (22,663) (243,082) (12,919) (201,627)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and impairments to property, plant and equipment 2,082 6,082 - -
Amortisation and impairments to intangible assets 22,464 198,193 - -
Impairment of investments in joint ventures (28) 941 - -
Share-based payments 4,107 16,468 2,754 17,704
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (27) (35) - -
Finance income - net (97) (1,775) 1) (257)
Exceptional (income)/costs (6,607) 3,492 7,558 179,865
Share of post-tax (profit)ioss of joint ventures 28 58 - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (741)  (19,658) (2,628) (4,315)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 4,284 15,292 120 (21,480)
Decrease in payables (8,735)  (19,100) (7,899) (449)
(Decrease)fincrease in provisions (539) 1,597 (36) (18)
Cash used In operations 5,731 21,869 10,443 26,262

Exceptional costs for the Company represent provisions against investments in, and balances due from, group undertakings and other exceptional items.
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27. Commitments, contingencies and guarantees
The Group leases its office premises under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2017 2016

. . £000 £000

‘Within 1 year ' 2,818 4,464
Within 2 to 5 years 6,064 16,611
After 5 years . . ) - 2472
“Total - - 8,882 23,547

Included within operating lease commitments are amounts for property leases which have been treated as onerous. The amount in respect of these leases,
included in the minumum lease payments above, due within one year is £1,434,000 (2016: £2,563,000) and due within two to five years is £3,298,000
(2016: £11,503,000). During the year, the Group has sublet certain properties within the commitments listed above, which will reduce the amounts payable
in future periods.

The Group had capital commitments of £80,000 at the end of the year (2016: £84,000) for capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for in the
financial statements.

Legal contingencies

No member of the Group is or has been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings and the Directors are not aware of any such
proceedings pending or threatened by or against the Group during the 12 months preceding the date of these financial statements which may have or have
had, in the recent past, a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of the Group.

Mobile VPT Limited has issued a UK patent infringement claim against Monitise international Limited (formerly known as Monitise Limited) and other related
parties. Following advice from leading counsel, the Directors believe that Monitise’s business activities in the UK do not infringe any valid claim of Mobile
VPT Limited’s patent and that the Mobile VPT Limited patent may be invalid. Monitise continues to monitor the status of the proceedings since they were
stayed in October 2007 but to date, and in light of the advice received from leading counsel, no provision has been reflected in the financial statements.

Guarantees
There are a number of operational and financial guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiary companies in each case on behalf of other

subsidiary entities.

The Company had no other commitments or contingencies at the end of the year.

28. Company statement of comprehensive income
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes.
The loss for the financial year of the Company was £12,919,000 (2016: £201,627,000).

29. Post balance sheet events
On 1 September 2017 the entire issued and to be issued share capital of the company was acquired by Fiserv UK Limited, an indirect and wholly owned

subsidiary of Fiserv, inc.



